

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION
DEPARTMENT OF LIQUOR CONTROL
COUNTY OF MAUI, STATE OF HAWAII

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS
SPECIAL MEETING

Held via Blue Jeans video conference, commencing at
1:33 p.m., on January 20, 2022.

REPORTED BY: SANDRA J. GRAN, RPR/CSR #424

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

APPEARANCES

COMMISSION MEMBERS PRESENT:

CHAIRPERSON: LEON BOLOSAN
VICE CHAIR: JAMIE BECRAFT
COMMISSIONERS: ROBERTO ANDRION, JR.
AARON BOSWELL
JERRYBETH DE MELLO
SYLVIA HO
SNEHAL PATEL
STANLEY RUIDAS
BRUCE U'U

STAFF PRESENT:

DEPUTY CORPORATION COUNSEL: JENNIFER OANA
DIRECTOR: LAYNE N. SILVA
DEPUTY DIRECTOR: JARRETT KAHOOHANOHANO
LIQUOR CONTROL OFFICER: MARC WEISENFELD
COMMISSION SECRETARY: MARIA KHANGSENGSING
PRIVATE SECRETARY: LIANNE SUZUKI

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

(January 20, 2022, 1:33 p.m.)

* * *

CHAIR BOLOSAN: All right. We can start. Good afternoon, everyone. This is Thursday, a special meeting of the meeting of the liquor control commission. It is January 20, 2022, at 1:33. I am Leon Bolosan, the chair of the commission, and I call this meeting to order.

I'm going to do a roll call. Commissioners, please also indicate who, if anyone, is present with you at your location.

Vice Chair Becraft.

VICE CHAIR BECRAFT: Good afternoon. I'm by myself, but today corporation counsel Moana Lutey is working out of our back office, and I'm out in the kitchen.

CHAIR BOLOSAN: Okay.

Commissioner Andrion.

COMMISSIONER ANDRION: Mr. Chair, I'm here, and there is no one in my office at the moment.

CHAIR BOLOSAN: Commissioner De Mello.

COMMISSIONER DE MELLO: I am here, and I am the only one in my office.

CHAIR BOLOSAN: Commissioner U'u. Commissioner U'u.

COMMISSIONER U'U: I'm present solo, by myself.

CHAIR BOLOSAN: Thank you.

Commissioner Boswell.

1 COMMISSIONER BOSWELL: I'm present, and I'm at home
2 with my wife and son.

3 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Commissioner Ruidas.

4 COMMISSIONER RUIDAS: Present, and I'm alone.

5 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Commissioner Ho.

6 COMMISSIONER HO: Hi. I'm at home alone. Thank
7 you.

8 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Thank you.

9 Commissioner Patel.

10 COMMISSIONER PATEL: I am at my office, and my
11 assistant is in the office next door, but my door is closed.

12 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Thank you. And the chair is present
13 as well, and I believe there's somebody downstairs, I'm not
14 sure who. Okay. So we're all present.

15 I'd like to call on Corp. Counsel Jennifer Oana.

16 CORP COUNSEL OANA: Good afternoon, everyone.

17 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Director Layne Silva.

18 DIRECTOR LAYNE N. SILVA: Present.

19 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Deputy Director Jarrett
20 Kahooohanohano.

21 DEPUTY DIRECTOR KAHOOHANOHANO: Present.

22 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Maria Khangsengsing.

23 MS. KHANGSENGSING: I'm present.

24 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Liane Suzuki.

25 MS. SUZUKI: Present.

1 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Marc Weisenfeld.

2 LCO WEISENFELD: Present.

3 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Did I miss anyone?

4 (No response.)

5 CHAIR BOLOSAN: If not, moving on the agenda. The
6 chair will entertain a motion to approve of today's agenda,
7 January 20, 2022. May I have a motion?

8 COMMISSIONER DE MELLO: Chair, I make a motion to
9 approve the agenda for today, January 20, 2022.

10 CHAIR BOLOSAN: '22, yeah. Thank you. Anyone
11 second?

12 COMMISSIONER ANDRION: Chair, Robert Andrion.
13 Second the agenda.

14 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Commissioner Andrion seconds and
15 moved by Commissioner De Mello. Okay.

16 COMMISSIONER U'U: Discussion, please.

17 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Okay. Any discussion?

18 COMMISSIONER U'U: Yes.

19 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Go ahead, Commissioner U'u.
20 Commissioner U'u.

21 COMMISSIONER DE MELLO: His mic.

22 COMMISSIONER U'U: Can you guys hear me?

23 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Yes.

24 COMMISSIONER U'U: Can you hear me now?

25 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Yes.

1 COMMISSIONER U'U: Okay, awesome. So I just
2 reviewed the agenda now, this morning, and I'm kind of curious
3 as to I thought we was gonna be working on forms. Is it my --
4 did I miss something? I thought we was gonna be working on
5 the application forms and how we could streamline it, but,
6 again, I'm (inaudible).

7 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Okay. In answer to your question,
8 Commissioner U'u, I would like to call Vice Chair; I believe
9 you made the motion on the last meeting.

10 VICE CHAIR BECRAFT: Yes. Thank you, Chair. And
11 Commissioner U'u, sorry if I -- I probably said it in a
12 confusing fashion, but the intention of my motion was to only
13 address on this special meeting the application that didn't
14 make it on the last agenda. Our agenda for this meeting is
15 only to address the two items that you see; the forms and
16 stuff is gonna be for our next regular scheduled meeting. So,
17 yeah, that's -- so that's not on the agenda, so we wouldn't be
18 able to talk about forms. We're just gonna be speaking about
19 whether or not we're gonna approve this license, the two
20 licenses.

21 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Thank you, Vice Chair Becraft. If
22 there are --

23 COMMISSIONER U'U: Okay. So --

24 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Yeah, go ahead.

25 COMMISSIONER U'U: (Inaudible.)

1 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Commissioner U'u.

2 COMMISSIONER U'U: Just, again, sorry, I'm having
3 some technical difficulties on my computer.

4 Okay. I might have -- I might have misunderstood
5 it. You've got to read the minutes into it, but I
6 misunderstood what's gonna happen today. And by the way, I'm
7 okay with it. I'm good with it, I just thought that we were
8 gonna work on the application process and then I see this this
9 morning and -- again, I've no objection to this.

10 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Okay, all right. Commissioner
11 Patel.

12 COMMISSIONER PATEL: No, I -- I want to just say
13 with Bruce, I also thought that the forms was gonna be under
14 discussion, so you're not alone in that. But I'm fine with
15 moving forward as is. I guess next time we'll be more careful
16 to listen to the motion in full and comment at that point. I
17 just thought we were gonna kill a couple birds with one stone
18 here, but okay.

19 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Thank you, Commissioner Patel.

20 VICE CHAIR BECRAFT: Yeah, I'm sorry -- I'm sorry if
21 I made -- guaranteed, it's gonna be on me. I apologize.

22 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Okay. Any more additional --
23 Commissioner Ruidas.

24 COMMISSIONER RUIDAS: Yeah, I thought I made a
25 suggestion that we was gonna do the salary thing on this

1 meeting not to waste, you know, time so that we could do it
2 earlier than next -- next meeting. That's all. That's all my
3 comment.

4 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Thank you, Commissioner Ruidas.

5 Any more before we move on?

6 (No response.)

7 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Okay. If not, then we're gonna go
8 on to approve the agenda. I will call for the vote. I'm
9 gonna do a roll call vote. All those who are in favor of the
10 motion, say aye, and those opposed, say nay.

11 Vice Chair Becraft.

12 VICE CHAIR BECRAFT: Aye.

13 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Commissioner Andrion.

14 COMMISSIONER ANDRION: Aye.

15 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Commissioner De Mello.

16 COMMISSIONER DE MELLO: Aye.

17 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Commissioner U'u.

18 COMMISSIONER U'U: Aye.

19 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Commissioner Boswell.

20 COMMISSIONER BOSWELL: Aye.

21 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Commissioner Ruidas.

22 COMMISSIONER RUIDAS: Aye.

23 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Commissioner Ho.

24 COMMISSIONER HO: Aye.

25 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Commissioner Patel.

1 COMMISSIONER PATEL: Aye.

2 CHAIR BOLOSAN: And the chair votes aye.

3 Motion passes.

4 Moving to the public testimony. With regards to
5 written testimony, the commissioners were all given the
6 written testimony submitted for this meeting. For oral
7 testimony, each testifier will be limited to two minutes on
8 each agenda item with additional one minute to conclude.
9 Testifier via video are asked to sign up using the chat
10 function by sending a direct message to the commission
11 secretary providing your name and which item you will be
12 testifying on. Testifier by phone will be called by the chair
13 after video testimony is finished. The meeting chat room is
14 only available for individuals to make known their desire to
15 testify; no other comments are allowed.

16 Except for commissioners, those attending the
17 meeting are to mute their audio and video unless called upon
18 by the chair to speak. Those who have signed up to testify
19 will be called by the chair to offer their testimony, at which
20 time they can unmute their audio and video. After completing
21 their testimony, testifier will mute their video and audio.
22 An individual's request to testify may be deemed withdrawn if
23 the individual does not answer when called to testify.

24 Maria, do we have any testifier?

25 MS. KHANGSENGSING: Nobody signed up to testify.

1 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Okay. Thank you, Maria.

2 With no objection, I will close public testimony.

3 (No response.)

4 CHAIR BOLOSAN: And we're gonna be moving on pretty
5 quick to public hearings. Application No. 10, Seasport
6 Cruises, Inc., doing business as Ocean Spirit. Will the
7 applicant please state your name and position please?

8 MS. MEHLING: Hi. This is Keri Mehling on behalf of
9 the applicant Seasport Cruises, Inc. Doing business as Ocean
10 Spirit. With me today on video are Debra -- sorry, you guys
11 keep shifting as everybody speaks. So Debra Merrill is on, as
12 well as Blake Moore on behalf of the applicant.

13 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Thank you, Keri.

14 Now, can I have you, Marc, go on and read the --

15 LCO WEISENFELD: Yes.

16 CHAIR BOLOSAN: -- to the commission. Go ahead,
17 Marc.

18 LCO WEISENFELD: Yes. We are on Application No. 10,
19 the applicant Seasport Cruises, Inc., a registered Hawaii
20 corporation doing business as Ocean Spirit.

21 Their past history, lease agreement, and management
22 agreement are listed in the investigator's report.

23 The proposed premises is a 64.9-foot single-hull
24 engine-powered sailing catamaran authorized to carry 90
25 persons, one master, two deckhands, total persons allowed is

1 96. The vessel is permitted for berth in Lahaina Small Boat
2 Harbor LAHOS No. B21 in Lahaina, Maui, Hawaii.

3 Passengers will be picked up and dropped off at the
4 Lahaina loading dock located at the Lahaina Small Boat Harbor.

5 The men's and women's toilet facilities are located
6 within the lower level on the inside hulls.

7 Beverages will be dispensed from within the main
8 cabin level of the vessel.

9 There are 38 licenses of this kind and class
10 currently issued within Maui County.

11 Plans of the applicant are to initially be open
12 seven days a week from 6:00 a.m. to 12:00 a.m.

13 The applicant appears to meet statutory requirements
14 to hold a license.

15 All documents for the issuance of the liquor license
16 are listed in the investigator's report.

17 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Thank you, Marc.

18 To the applicants, do you have anything else to add,
19 Keri?

20 MS. MEHLING: Mr. Chair, first -- first, thank you,
21 everybody, for doing this. And thank you, Layne, because as
22 soon as he was off the last meeting, he was on grabbing all of
23 the paperwork and getting this done. And in the process of
24 all of us getting second sets of eyes on it, we did discover
25 that there is a historical misstatement in the application

1 that got repeated in this application; it's been in there for
2 a few years. The vessel is actually, in fact, a double hull
3 twin-engine powered sailing catamaran with a passenger-
4 carrying capacity of 90 passengers. We sent a notarized
5 letter in on the 18th when we discovered that anomaly that had
6 been carried forward over several different, I guess, licenses
7 and iterations of it, and so we did make that correction
8 formally to the application. I know Kari's report was issued
9 prior to that, so that didn't get caught, but I did want to
10 bring that to the attention of the commission.

11 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Thank you. Now I'd like to open for
12 public testimony.

13 Maria, we still don't have any for or against this
14 application, right?

15 MS. KHANGSENGSING: No.

16 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Okay. If then any question from
17 members of the commission, please.

18 COMMISSIONER ANDRION: Mr. Chair, I do have a
19 question.

20 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Yes, go ahead, Commissioner Andrion.

21 COMMISSIONER ANDRION: I believe this is for Keri.
22 Just your statement, Keri, so the maximum capacity is 90 total
23 to include the crew?

24 MS. MEHLING: I'm sorry, the carrying capacity?

25 COMMISSIONER ANDRION: Yeah, the maximum amount of

1 people that can be on board the catamaran, is that 90
2 personnel?

3 MS. MEHLING: Ninety passengers, total persons is
4 96.

5 COMMISSIONER ANDRION: Oh, 96. Okay, all right. I
6 got that. And can you -- I didn't quite understand the hours
7 of operation. What -- what hours of operation was that?

8 MS. MEHLING: Seven days a week, 6:00 a.m. until
9 midnight.

10 COMMISSIONER ANDRION: So that would be -- okay.
11 That's why they've got the 12:00 a.m. Okay, thank you.
12 That's all that I needed to clarify. Thank you.

13 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Okay. Any more question or comments
14 from the commissioners?

15 (No response.)

16 CHAIR BOLOSAN: If none, I call for the motion to
17 approve. May I have a motion to approve?

18 COMMISSIONER ANDRION: Roberto Andrion. Motion to
19 approve Application No. 10 on Ocean Spirit.

20 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Okay. I have Commissioner Andrion
21 moved to approve. And seconded by --

22 VICE CHAIR BECRAFT: (Gesturing.)

23 CHAIR BOLOSAN: -- Vice Chair Becraft.

24 VICE CHAIR BECRAFT: Yes, sir, thank you.

25 CHAIR BOLOSAN: All right. Now I will call for the

1 vote. So those who are in favor of the motion, say aye; and
2 those opposed, say nay.

3 Vice Chair Becraft.

4 VICE CHAIR BECRAFT: Aye.

5 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Commissioner Andrion.

6 COMMISSIONER ANDRION: Aye.

7 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Commissioner De Mello.

8 COMMISSIONER DE MELLO: Aye.

9 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Commissioner U'u.

10 COMMISSIONER U'U: Aye.

11 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Commissioner Boswell.

12 COMMISSIONER BOSWELL: Aye.

13 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Commissioner Ruidas.

14 COMMISSIONER RUIDAS: Aye.

15 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Commissioner Ho.

16 COMMISSIONER HO: Aye.

17 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Commissioner Patel.

18 COMMISSIONER PATEL: Aye.

19 CHAIR BOLOSAN: And the chair votes aye.

20 The vote is unanimous, and the motion passes.

21 Congratulations.

22 MS. MEHLING: Thank you.

23 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Application No. 11, Unicorn Tours of
24 Hawaii, Inc., doing business as Ocean Explorer. I believe we
25 have the same representative. Am I right?

1 MS. MEHLING: That's correct, the same persons are
2 present and available.

3 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Okay. Now I'm gonna ask Marc to go
4 ahead and read.

5 LCO WEISENFELD: Yes. On Application No. 11, the
6 applicant is Unicorn Tours of Hawaii, Inc., a registered
7 Hawaii corporation doing business as Ocean Explorer.

8 The officers, director, and stockholder of the
9 corporation; personal history statements; the past history;
10 vessel documentation; lease agreement are all listed in the
11 investigator's report.

12 The proposed premises is a 54-foot aluminum single
13 hull engine-powered catamaran authorized to carry 49
14 passengers, two other passengers, and crew, one master, one
15 deckhand; total persons allowed is 51.

16 The vessel is moored at LAHMVE No. 14, Lahaina,
17 Maui, Hawaii.

18 Passengers will be picked up and dropped off at the
19 Lahaina loading dock located at the Lahaina Small Harbor.

20 The men's and women's toilet facilities are located
21 within the lower level inside hulls.

22 Beverages will be dispensed from within the main
23 cabin level of the vessel.

24 There are 32 licenses of this kind and class
25 currently issued within Maui County. The applicant initially

1 plans to be open seven days a week from 6:00 a.m. to 12:00
2 a.m.

3 The applicant appears to meet statutory requirements
4 to hold the license.

5 And all documents necessary for the issuance of a
6 liquor license are listed in the investigator's report.

7 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Thank you, Marc.

8 Do the applicants, do you have anything else to add,
9 Keri?

10 MS. MEHLING: And, again, on the premises
11 description, there was a typographical error. The description
12 that was read to you says single hull engine powered
13 catamaran, which actually is impossible, so what it is is a
14 double-hulled twin-engine powered catamaran, so that's the
15 correct description, and that too was submitted by the formal
16 notarized statement on the 18th.

17 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Okay. Thank you.

18 Now, I believe to this point I'm gonna open for
19 public testimony, but I believe we don't have nobody for or
20 against this application. With no objection, then, I will
21 move on.

22 (No response.)

23 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Any question from the members of the
24 commissioners, please?

25 (No response.)

1 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Last call.

2 COMMISSIONER DE MELLO: Leon.

3 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Yes, Commissioner De Mello.

4 COMMISSIONER DE MELLO: Can -- can the attorney say
5 how many guests is allowed at the time of this vessel on the
6 trip? Sorry.

7 MS. MEHLING: So the vessel -- the vessel's capacity
8 is 49 passengers, 51 people total.

9 COMMISSIONER DE MELLO: Okay. Thank you.

10 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Okay. Thank you, Commissioner De
11 Mello.

12 Any more questions or discussion from the members?

13 (No response.)

14 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Okay. If not, may I have a motion
15 for approval?

16 COMMISSIONER ANDRION: (Gesturing.)

17 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Okay. Commissioner Andrion.

18 COMMISSIONER U'U: I'll make the motion to approve.

19 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Okay. I had Commissioner Andrion
20 made the motion, and I'll give you the second, Commissioner
21 U'u, for the record. Okay?

22 COMMISSIONER U'U: Perfect.

23 CHAIR BOLOSAN: All right. Then I will go on for
24 the vote. All of those who are in favor of the motion, say
25 aye; and those opposed, say nay.

1 Vice Chair Becraft.

2 VICE CHAIR BECRAFT: Aye.

3 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Commissioner Andrion. Commissioner
4 Andrion. Robert?

5 COMMISSIONER ANDRION: I'm sorry, Mr. Chair, I was
6 on -- aye.

7 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Okay. Thank you.

8 Commissioner De Mello.

9 COMMISSIONER DE MELLO: Aye.

10 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Commissioner U'u.

11 COMMISSIONER U'U: Aye.

12 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Commissioner Boswell.

13 COMMISSIONER BOSWELL: Aye.

14 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Commissioner Ruidas.

15 COMMISSIONER RUIDAS: Aye.

16 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Commissioner Ho.

17 COMMISSIONER HO: Aye.

18 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Commissioner Patel.

19 COMMISSIONER PATEL: Aye.

20 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Thank you.

21 And the chair votes aye.

22 The vote is unanimous, and the motion passes. Okay.
23 Congratulations to the applicants.

24 MS. MEHLING: Thank you very much.

25 MR. MOORE: Thank you very much, guys. Thanks for

1 calling this meeting for us.

2 VICE CHAIR BECRAFT: Good luck to you folks.

3 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Good luck.

4 COMMISSIONER U'U: Good luck.

5 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Okay. I'm gonna cover No. 6, next
6 meeting. The next liquor control commission regular meeting
7 is scheduled for February 9th, 2022, at 9:00 a.m.

8 Before I go on the next item, which is adjournment,
9 I would like to ask any one of you for any question or comment
10 by the commissioners before I call --

11 MS. MEHLING: Mr. Chairman.

12 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Yes.

13 MS. MEHLING: This is Keri again. Sorry. On
14 February 9th, should we be in attendance and prepared to
15 assist with comments regarding the forms? We have about four
16 or five pages of suggestions ready to roll. Or should we just
17 go ahead and send that to Director Silva?

18 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Layne, could you answer that?

19 DIRECTOR LAYNE N. SILVA: Yeah, if it's possible,
20 submit them to the department so we can have a chance to go
21 over them and review it. But we're going through it
22 ourselves, and we're also gonna try and get, you know,
23 feedback from corporation counsel as well once we get all of
24 the suggestions in and submit our own set of suggestions just
25 to make sure everything is still in compliance with state law.

1 So, yeah, the sooner you can get them in, the better.

2 MS. MEHLING: Okay. We'll have our first draft to
3 you by tomorrow close of business.

4 DIRECTOR LAYNE N. SILVA: Thank you.

5 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Thank you, Keri.

6 VICE CHAIR BECRAFT: And if I may add, if you have
7 the time and you can attend that meeting too just to be part
8 of the collaborative effort, get everything so we can iron
9 things out, that would be great.

10 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Keri, you heard what --

11 MS. MEHLING: I did, and I will get it on my
12 calendar and do my absolute best to be present.

13 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Thank you both.

14 Any more comments or any questions before we
15 adjourn, ladies and gentlemen?

16 VICE CHAIR BECRAFT: I just want to thank --

17 MS. MEHLING: Thank you again.

18 VICE CHAIR BECRAFT: And I too want to thank the
19 board for everybody making the time. So I'm sorry this took
20 an extra step for you folks, but we're all trying to work
21 together to smooth this out, so I'm appreciative of everyone.
22 Thanks.

23 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Thank you, Vice Chair.

24 I do have Bruce U'u raising his hand, followed by
25 Commissioner Andrion. Go ahead, Commissioner U'u.

1 COMMISSIONER U'U: Oh, no, my hand was just like
2 double shaka.

3 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Oh, okay.

4 COMMISSIONER U'U: I'm good.

5 CHAIR BOLOSAN: All right.

6 COMMISSIONER ANDRION: And the same as -- I mean,
7 Mr. Chair, I was in approval with thumbs up.

8 (Laughter.)

9 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Any more happy hands?

10 (Laughter.)

11 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Well, any more?

12 (No response.)

13 CHAIR BOLOSAN: If not, I'm gonna ask someone to
14 make a motion for adjournment.

15 COMMISSIONER PATEL: Make a motion, Chair.

16 COMMISSIONER ANDRION: I make a motion to adjourn.

17 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Okay. I got Commissioner Andrion
18 and Commissioner Patel second for the record. All in favor,
19 say aye.

20 (Response.)

21 CHAIR BOLOSAN: Meeting adjourned. Thank you,
22 ladies and gentlemen.

23 (The proceedings were adjourned at 1:58 p.m.)
24
25

C E R T I F I C A T E

1

2 STATE OF HAWAII)

3 COUNTY OF MAUI) SS.

4

5 I, Sandra J. Gran, Certified Shorthand Reporter for

6 the State of Hawaii, hereby certify that on January 20, 2022,

7 at 1:33 p.m. the proceedings was taken down by me in machine

8 shorthand and was thereafter reduced to typewritten form under

9 my supervision; that the foregoing represents, to the best of

10 my ability, a true and correct transcript of the proceedings

11 had in the foregoing matter.

12

13 I further certify that I am not an attorney for any

14 of the parties hereto, nor in any way concerned with the

15 cause.

16

17 DATED this 29th day of January, 2022, in Maui,

18 Hawaii.

19

20

21 

22 _____

23 Sandra J. Gran, RPR

24 Hawaii CSR 424

25 _____